
D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-1 

8.0 REFERENCES 

CHAPTER 2.0:  SUMMARY 

City of Fairfield Community Development Department. 2015 General Plan Land Use Map. Website: 
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/3170/637732653282470000 
(accessed March 10, 2022). 

CHAPTER 3.0:  PROJECT DESCRIPTION 

City of Fairfield. 2015. Community Development Department. 2015 General Plan Land Use Map. 
Website: https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/3170/63773 
2653282470000 (accessed March 10, 2022).  

_____. 2020. Fairfield Guidelines for Project VMT Screening Transportation Analysis. December 22, 
2020. 

_____. Community Development Department, Zoning Designations. Website: https://www.arcgis. 
com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=2631cd4c79da4c6099c6e0a4ded9a172 (accessed 
March 10, 2022). 

Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD). 2022 Sewer Rate and Capacity Charge Study. Website: 
https://www.fssd.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/02/Fairfield-Suisun-2022-Sewer-Rate-
Study-1.24.22-Final.pdf (accessed March 22, 2022). 

United States Census Bureau, American Community Survey 2012-2016 Five-Year Estimates. 

SECTION 4.1:  AESTHETICS 

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans). 2015, last modified July 2019. List of Eligible and 
Officially Designated State Scenic Highways. Website: https://caltrans.maps.arcgis.com/
apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=465dfd3d807c46cc8e8057116f1aacaa (accessed March 
1, 2022). 

City of Fairfield. 1999.  Department of Planning and Development. Scenic Vistas and Roadways Plan. 
Adopted by the Fairfield City County on June 15, 1999 (Resolution 99-175). 

United States Census Bureau. Fairfield, CA Urbanized Area No. 28657. Website: https://www.arcgis.
com/home/webmap/viewer.html?url=https%3A%2F%2Ftigerweb.geo.census.gov%2Farcgis
%2Frest%2Fservices%2FTIGERweb%2FUrban%2FMapServer&source=sd (accessed March 1, 
2022).    



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-2 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

SECTION 4.2:  AIR QUALITY 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). 2014. Community Air Risk Evaluation 
Program. August 20. Website: https://www.baaqmd.gov/community-health/community-
health-protection-program/community-air-risk-evaluation-care-program (accessed February 
2022). 

_____.  2015. Toxic Air Contaminant Control Program Annual Report, Volume 1. May. Website: 
www.baaqmd.gov/research-and-data/air-toxics/annual-report (accessed February 2022). 

_____.  2017a. Bay Area Attainment Status.  

_____.  2017b. California Environmental Quality Act, Air Quality Guidelines. May. 

_____.  2017c. Final 2017 Clean Air Plan. April 19, 2017. Website: www.baaqmd.gov/~/media/ 
files/planning-and-research/plans/2017-clean-air-plan/attachment-a_-proposed-final-cap-
vol-1-pdf.pdf?la=en (accessed February 2022). 

_____.  2019. Climate and Air Quality in San Mateo County. February 14, 2019. Website: https:// 
www.baaqmd.gov/about-the-air-district/in-your-community/solano-county (accessed 
February 2022). 

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2016. Ambient Air Quality Standards. 

_____. 2000. Fact Sheet – California’s Plan to Reduce Diesel Particulate Matter Emissions. October. 
Available online at: www.arb.ca.gov/diesel/factsheets/rrpfactsheet.pdf (accessed February 
2022). 

_____. 2020. Inhalable Particulate Matter and Health (PM2.5 and PM10). Website: ww2.arb.ca.gov/
resources/inhalable-particulate-matter-and-health (accessed February 2022). 

California Environmental Protection Agency and California Air Resources Board. 2005. Air Quality 
and Land Use Handbook: A Community Health Perspective. April. Website: www.arb.ca.gov/
ch/handbook.pdf (accessed February 2022). 

Propper, Ralph, Patrick Wong, Son Bui, Jeff Austin, William Vance, Álvaro Alvarado, Bart Croes, and 
Dongmin Luo. 2015. Ambient and Emission Trends of Toxic Air Contaminants in California. 
American Chemical Society: Environmental Science & Technology. Website: pubs.acs.org/
doi/full/10.1021/acs.est.5b02766 (accessed February 2022). 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2017. Criteria Air Pollutants. October. 
Website: www.epa.gov/criteria-air-pollutants (accessed February 2022). 



D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-3 

SECTION 4.3:  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES 

Bulger, J.B., Scott, N.J., and Seymour, R.B. 2003. Terrestrial activity and conservation of adult 
California red-legged frogs Rana aurora draytonii in coastal forests and grasslands. Biological 
Conservation 110:85–95. 

Calflora. 2022. Calflora Database Web Application - Asclepias fascicularis (narrow leaf milkweed). 
Website: https://www.calflora.org/ (accessed on May 10, 2022). 

California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). 2022. California Natural Diversity Database. 
Wildlife and Habitat Data Analysis Branch, Sacramento, CA. Website: https://wildlife.ca.
gov/Data/CNDDB (accessed March 2022). 

California Native Plant Society (CNPS). 2022. Inventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California. 
California Native Plant Society, Sacramento, CA. Website: https://www.rareplants.cnps.org 
(accessed March 2022). 

City of Fairfield. 2013. City of Fairfield General Plan, Open Space, Conservation, and Recreation 
Element. August. 

eBird. 2022. Explore Data, eBird Records. Website: https://ebird.org/ebird/explore. Most recently 
accessed: March 2022. 

Ernst, C.H. and Lovich, J.E. 2009. Turtles of the United States and Canada. Johns Hopkins University 
Press, Baltimore, MD. 

Leidy, R.A., G.S. Becker, B.N. Harvey. 2005. Historical distribution and current status of 
steelhead/rainbow trout (Oncorhynchus mykiss) in streams of the San Francisco Estuary, 
California. Center for Ecosystem Management and Restoration, Oakland, California. 

State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 2020, Adopted May 28, 2020. State Wetland 
Definition and Procedures for the Discharge of Dredged or Fill Material to Waters of the 
State.  

Thomson, Robert C., Amber N. Wright, and H. Bradley Shaffer. 2016. California Amphibian and 
Reptile Species of Special Concern. 

United States Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS). 2020. Endangered and Threatened Wildlife and 
Plants; 12-Month Finding for the Monarch Butterfly. 85 FR 81813, Pages 81813-81822. 

Western Monarch and Milkweed Occurrence Database. 2022. Western Monarch Milkweed Mapper, 
a project by the Xerces Society, United States Fish and Wildlife Service, Idaho Department of 
Fish and Game, and Washington Department of Fish and Wildlife. Website:  https://www.
monarchmilkweedmapper.org/ (accessed May 2022). 

WRA Environmental Consultants (WRA). 2022. Green Valley III Apartments Property ‐ Biological Due 
Diligence Assessment. March 22, 2022. 



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-4 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

SECTION 4.4: CULTURAL RESOURCES AND TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES 

Alshuth, Tyler, and Tom Origer. 2022. Cultural Resources Study for the Business Center Apartments 
Project, 4840 Business Center Drive, Fairfield, Solano County, California. Prepared March 30, 
2021, revised February 18, 2022. 

California Association of Local Agency Formation Commissions (CALAFCO). 2014. California Cities by 
Incorporation Date. CALAFCO. Sacramento, California. 

California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP). 2001. California Office of Historic Preservation 
Technical Assistance Series #7, How to Nominate a Resource to the California Register of 
Historical Resources. Published September 4, 2001. 

City of Fairfield. 2022. “History of Downtown Fairfield | Visit Fairfield Media Resources”. Website: 
https://visitfairfield.com/media/destination-background/fairfield-history/ (accessed 
October 24, 2022). 

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR). 2005. Tribal Consultation Guidelines. Published 
November 14, 2005. 

Hoover, Mildred Brooke, Hero Eugene Rensch, Ethel Rensch, and William N. Abeloe. 2002. Historic 
Spots in California. Fourth edition, revised by Douglas E. Kyle. Stanford Univ Press, Stanford, 
California. 

Robertson, Donald B. 1998. Encyclopedia of Western Railroad History: Volume 4, California. Self-
published by Donald B. Robertson and bound by The Caxton Printers, Ltd., Caldwell Idaho. 

Solano County. 2008. Solano County General Plan. Adopted August 5, 2008. 

Wallace-Kuhl & Associates. 2021. Phase I Environmental Site Assessment – Business Center 
Apartments Property. March 16, 2021. 

Williams, James, C. 1997. Energy and the Making of Modern California. University of Akron Press, 
Akron, Ohio. 

WRA Environmental Consultants (WRA). 2022. Green Valley III Apartments Property ‐ Biological Due 
Diligence Assessment. March 22, 2022. 

SECTION 4.5: ENERGY 

California Energy Commission (CEC). 2021a. 2020 Total System Electric Generation. Website: https://
www.energy.ca.gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/california-electricity-data/2020-total-
system-electric-generation (accessed March 2022). 

_____. 2021b. Electricity Consumption by Entity. Website: ecdms.energy.ca.gov/elecbyutil.aspx 
(accessed March 2022). 



D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-5 

_____. 2021c. Electricity Consumption by County. Website: ecdms.energy.ca.gov/elecbycounty.aspx 
(accessed March 2022). 

_____. 2021d. Supply and Demand of Natural Gas in California. Website: https://www.energy.ca.
gov/data-reports/energy-almanac/californias-natural-gas-market/supply-and-demand-
natural-gas-california (accessed March 2022). 

_____. 2021e. Gas Consumption by Entity. Website: ecdms.energy.ca.gov/gasbyutil.aspx (accessed 
March 2022). 

_____. 2021f Gas Consumption by County. Website: ecdms.energy.ca.gov/gasbycounty.aspx 
(accessed March 2022). 

_____. 2021g. 2021 Integrated Energy Policy Report. Docket No. 21-IEPR-01. 

_____. 2022. 2020 Integrated Energy Policy Report Update. California Energy Commission. Docket 
Number: 22-IEPR-01. 

California Public Utilities Commission (CPUC). 2008. California Long-Term Energy Efficiency Strategic 
Plan. September. Website: cpuc.ca.gov/General.aspx?id=4125 (accessed March 2022). 

_____. 2019. Renewables Portfolio Standard Program. Website: cpuc.ca.gov/rps (accessed March 
2022). 

Pacific Gas & Electric (PG&E). 2020. Exploring Clean Energy Solutions. June. Website: https://www.
pge.com/en_US/about-pge/environment/what-we-are-doing/clean-energy-solutions/clean-
energy-solutions.page?WT.mc_id=Vanity_cleanenergy (accessed March 2022). 

United States Department of Energy. 2007. “Energy Independence & Security Act of 2007.” Website: 
https://www.afdc.energy.gov/laws/eisa (accessed March 2022). 

United States Department of Energy, Energy Information Administration (EIA). 2021. California State 
Profile and Energy Estimates. Table F3: Motor gasoline consumption, price, and expenditure 
estimates, 2020. Website: eia.gov/state/seds/data.php?incfile=/state/seds/sep_fuel/
html/fuel_mg.html&sid=CA (accessed March 2022). 

United States Department of Transportation (USDOT). “Table 4-23: Average Fuel Efficiency of U.S. 
Light Duty Vehicles.” Website: https://www.bts.gov/content/average-fuel-efficiency-us-
light-duty-vehicles (accessed March 2022). 

SECTION 4.6:  GEOLOGY AND SOILS 

California Department of Conservation, California Geological Survey (CGS). 2002. Note 36, California 
Geomorphic Provinces. 

_____.  Landslide Inventory. Website: https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/lsi/app/ (accessed 
February 16, 2022). 



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-6 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

Jones & Stokes, Draft Program Environmental Impact Report Comprehensive Amendment to the City 
of Fairfield General Plan, Chapter 7 Health and Safety, Figure 7-1 Soil Associations of the 
Planning Area, August 2001. 

United States Department of Agriculture Natural Resources Conservation Service, WebSoil Survey. 
Website: https://websoilsurvey.sc.egov.usda.gov/App/HomePage.htm (accessed May 4-5, 
2022). 

United States Geological Survey, California Geologic Map Data. Website: https://mrdata.usgs.gov/
geology/state/state.php?state=CA (accessed April 6, 2022). 

_____.  Earthquake Outlook for the San Francisco Bay Region 2014-2043. Fact Sheet 2016-3020. 
Revised August 2016. 

University of California Berkeley, University of California Museum of Paleontology Specimens. 
Website: https://ucmp.berkeley.edu/collections/databases/ (accessed April and May 2022). 

Wallace Kuhl & Associates. 2021. Geotechnical Engineering Report. Green Valley 3 Apartments. May 
4 (Revised February 16, 2022). 

SECTION 4.7:  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS 

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). 2015. Source Inventory of Bay Area 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions. January. 

_____.  2017a. CEQA Air Quality Guidelines. May. 

_____.  2017b. Final 2017 Clean Air Plan. April 19, 2017. Available online at: www.baaqmd.gov/~/
media/files/planning-and-research/plans/2017-clean-air-plan/attachment-a_-proposed-
final-cap-vol-1-pdf.pdf?la=en (accessed March 2022). 

_____.  2022. Justification Report: CEQA Thresholds for Evaluating the Significance of Climate 
Impacts from Land Use Projects and Plans. April. 

California Air Resources Board (CARB). 2007a. “ARB approves tripling of early action measures 
required under AB 32” News Release 07-46. October 25. 

_____.  2007b. Expanded List of Early Action Measures to Reduce Greenhouse Gas Emissions in 
California Recommended for Board Consideration. October. 

_____.  2014. Cap-and-Trade Program. Website: www.arb.ca.gov/cc/capandtrade/capandtrade.htm 
(accessed March 2022). 

_____.  2017. California 2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan. November. 



D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-7 

_____.  2021a. California Greenhouse Gas Emissions for 2000 to 2019, Trends of Emissions and 
Other Indicators Report. Website: https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/inventory/pubs/reports/
2000_2019/ghg_inventory_trends_00-19.pdf (accessed March 2022). 

_____.  2021b. GHGs Descriptions & Sources in California. Website: ww2.arb.ca.gov/ghg-
descriptions-sources (accessed March 2022). 

California Environmental Protection Agency (CalEPA). 2006. Climate Action Team Report to 
Governor Schwarzenegger and the Legislature. March. 

City of Fairfield. 2021. Existing Conditions Report. May. 

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR). 2018. Technical Advisory on Evaluating 
Transportation Impacts in CEQA. April. 

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC). 2007. Climate Change 2007: The Physical 
Science Basis, Summary for Policymakers. February. 

United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change (UNFCCC). 2021. GHG Data from 
UNFCCC. Website: unfccc.int/process-and-meetings/transparency-and-
reporting/greenhouse-gas-data/ghg-data-unfccc/ghg-data-from-unfccc (accessed March 
2022). 

United States Department of the Interior. 2007. Environmental Water Account Draft Supplemental 
EIS/EIR to the Environmental Water Account Final EIS/EIR, Bureau of Reclamation Mid‐
Pacific Region, Sacramento, California. October. 

United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA). 2017. Black Carbon, Basic Information. 
February 14, 2017. Website: 19january2017snapshot.epa.gov/www3/airquality/black 
carbon/basic.html (accessed March 2022). 

_____.   2020. Air Quality and Climate Change Research. Website: https://www.epa.gov/air-
research/air-quality-and-climate-change-research (accessed March 2022). 

_____.   2021. Inventory of U.S. Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Sinks: 1990-2019. Website: 
https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/inventory-us-greenhouse-gas-emissions-and-sinks-
1990-2019 (accessed March 2022). 

SECTION 4.8: HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY 

California Department of Conservation (DOC). 2021. Website: http://conservation.ca.gov/cgs/
tsunami/maps (accessed March 29, 2022). 

California Department of Natural Resources. 2021. Groundwater Basin Boundary Description. 
September 2021. Website: https://data.cnra.ca.gov/dataset/bbd2/resource/8a156704-
8fbd-4eeb-aaa1-fa5cbc555ed3 (accessed March 7, 2022). 



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-8 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

California Department of Water Resources (DWR). 2014. California’s Groundwater Basin Bulletin 
118: Suisun‐Fairfield Valley Groundwater Basin. June 30, 2014. 

_____.  SGMA Basin Prioritization Dashboard, Groundwater Basins 2016. Website: https://gis.water.
ca.gov/app/bp-dashboard/p2/ (accessed May 2, 2022). 

California Governor’s Office of Emergency Services. 2021. Website: http://myhazards.caloes.ca.gov 
(accessed March 29, 2022). 

Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District. 2017. Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District Wastewater Discharge 
Ordinance. Website: https://www.fssd.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/07/Ord-1701-1.pdf 
(accessed March 23, 2022).  

_____. 2022. Website: https://www.fssd.com/stormwater-management/ (accessed April 28, 2022). 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). Federal Emergency Management Act, May 4, 
2009. FEMA Flood Map Service Center: Search by Address. Website: https://msc.fema.gov/
portal/search (accessed October 2022). 

San Francisco Bay Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB). 2017. Water Quality Control Plan 
for the San Francisco Bay Basin. 

_____.  2022. Basin Plan. Website: https:// www.waterboards.ca.gov/sanfranciscobay/water_
issues/programs/#basinplan (accessed May 2, 2022). 

Solano Water Authority. 1999–2002. Groundwater Conditions in Solano County. Website: https://
www.scwa2.com/wp-content/uploads/2020/02/Ground-water-Annual-Report-1999-to-
2002-ID-105148.pdf (accessed October 2022). 

TDS Engineering Inc. 2022. Preliminary Stormwater Control Plan Green Valley 3 Apartments. 
February. 

Wallace Kuhl & Associates. 2021. Revised 2022. Geotechnical Engineering Report. Green Valley 3 
Apartments. May 4, 2021 (Revised February 16, 2022). 

_____.  2022. Geotechnical Evaluation of Green Valley 3 Apartments. February 16, 2022. 

SECTION 4.9:  LAND USE AND PLANNING 

City of Fairfield. 2013. General Plan Open Space Element. August. 

_____.  2014. General Plan Housing Element. June. 

_____. 2015. Community Development Department. General Plan Land Use Map. Website: 
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/3170/637732653282470000 
(accessed March 10, 2022). 



D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-9 

_____.  2016. General Plan Land Use Element. October. 

 _____.  Community Development Department, Zoning Designations. Website: https://www.arcgis.
com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=2631cd4c79da4c6099c6e0a4ded9a172 (accessed 
March 10, 2022). 

County of Solano Department of Resource Management. 2015. Travis Air Force Base Land Use 
Compatibility Plan. Adopted October 8, 2015. 

Encyclopedia Britannica, Fairfield California. Last updated October 20, 2021. Website: https://www.
britannica.com/place/Fairfield-California (accessed March 15, 2022). 

SECTION 4.10:  NOISE 

California Building Industry Association v. Bay Area Air Quality Management District. 2015. 62 
Cal.4th 369, 386. 

City of Fairfield. 2004. City of Fairfield General Plan Health and Safety Element. October. 

_____.  2019. Mitigated Negative Declaration for the Residence Inn. February 13. 

_____.  2022. City of Fairfield Municipal Code. 

Federal Highway Administration (FHWA). 2006. Highway Construction Noise Handbook. Roadway 
Construction Noise Model, FHWA-HEP-06-015. DOT-VNTSC-FHWA-06-02. NTIS No. PB2006-
109012. August. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA). 2018. Transit Noise and Vibration Impact Assessment Manual. 
FTA Report 0123. September. 

Fehr & Peers. 2022. Green Valley 3 Apartment Complex Traffic Volumes. April. 

Harris, Cyril M., editor. 1991. Handbook of Acoustical Measurements and Noise Control, Third 
Edition. 

Napa County. 2008. Napa County General Plan. June 3. 

SECTION 4.11:  PUBLIC SERVICES AND RECREATION 

California Department of Finance, E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the 
State, 2022 Data for the City of Fairfield. Website: https://dof.ca.gov/forecasting/demo 
graphics/estimates/estimates-e5-2010-2021/ (accessed May 6, 2022). 

City of Fairfield. 2013. General Plan Open Space, Conservation, and Recreation Element, August 
2013. 

_____.  2018. Department of Public Works. Parks & Trails. Website: https://www.fairfield.ca. gov
/gov/depts/public_works_/parks/default.asp (accessed August 6, 2018). 



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-10 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

_____.  2020. Fire Department, 2020 Annual Report. Website: https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/home/
showpublisheddocument/2790/637533185257270000 (accessed February 16, 2022). 

_____.  2022. Fairfield Guidelines for Project VMT Screening Transportation Analysis. December 22, 
2022. 

Fairfield-Suisun Unified School District (FSUSD). 2021/22 Demographics and Enrollment Projections, 
November 2021. 

_____.  2021. School Facility Needs Analysis and Justification Study, Table 1-1, page 6. Website: 
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1NlRgpTvtFKsk-WunTz6NN8N43qjRptYl/view (accessed 
February 17, 2022). 

_____.   Current Development Impact Fee Rates as of August 13, 2021. Website: https://www.fsusd.
org/Page/16533 (accessed February 17, 2022). 

_____.  Facilities Master Plan. Website: https://www.fsusd.org/Page/16519 (accessed May 5, 2022). 

_____.  FSUSD School Sites. Website: https://www.fsusd.org/schools (accessed February 17, 2022). 

Solano County Library Facilities Master Plan, Section 5 Library System Strategies, page 22. Website: 
https://solanolibrary.com/wp-content/uploads/2021/03/Solano-County-Library-Facilities-
Master-Plan-2021.pdf (accessed April 7, 2022). 

United States Census Bureau. American Community Survey 2012–2016 Five-Year Estimates. 

SECTION 4.12:  TRANSPORTATION 

City of Fairfield. 2002. City of Fairfield General Plan, Circulation Element. 

Citizens for Positive Growth & Preservation v. City of Sacramento. 2019. 43 Cal. App. 5th 609, 626. 

Fehr & Peers. 2022. Green Valley III Residential Project – CEQA Assessment. October 19. 

Governor’s Office of Planning and Research (OPR). 2016. Revised Proposal on Updates to the CEQA 
Guidelines on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA, Implementing Senate Bill 743 
(Steinberg, 2013). January 20. 

_____. 2018. Technical Advisory on Evaluating Transportation Impacts in CEQA. December 18. 
Website: https://opr.ca.gov/docs/20190122-743_Technical_Advisory.pdf (accessed April 26, 
2022). 

United States Census Bureau. 2020. American Community Survey 5-Year Estimates. Website: 
https://data.census.gov/cedsci/profile?g=1600000US0623182 (accessed May 2022). 



D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-11 

SECTION 4.13:  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS 

California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (CalRecycle). 2006. Jurisdiction 
Diversion/Disposal Rate Summary City of Fairfield 2006. Website: https://www2.calrecycle. 
ca.gov/LGCentral/DiversionProgram/JurisdictionDiversionSummary (accessed March 24, 
2022). 

_____.  2007. Per Capita Disposal and Goal Measurement (2007 and later). Website: https://cal
recycle.ca.gov/lgcentral/basics/percapitadsp/ (accessed April 25, 2022). 

_____.  2021. Potrero Hills Landfill, 5-Year Permit Review Report, October 22, 2021. 

_____.  2022. Potrero Hills Landfill. Website: https://www2.calrecycle.ca.gov/SolidWaste/Site/
Summary/3591 (accessed March 24, 2022). 

_____. CalRecycle, Our Mission. Website: https://cal recycle.ca.gov/ (accessed April 12, 2022). 

California Energy Commission (CEC).  2020. Natural Gas Consumption by County, Solano County 
2020. Website: http://www.ecdmsenergy.ca.gov/gasbycounty.aspx (accessed March 28, 
2022). 

_____. 2021. Electricity Consumption by County. Website: ecdms.energy.ca.gov/elecbycounty.aspx 
(accessed March 2022). 

City of Fairfield. City of Fairfield General Plan. Website: https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/government/
city-departments/community-development/planning-division/general-plan/general-plan-
documents?locale=en (accessed April 12, 2022). 

_____. City of Fairfield Municipal Code, Chapter 22A Water Efficient Landscaping. 

Fairfield-Suisun Sewer District (FSSD). 2022. 2022 Sewer Rate and Capacity Charge Study Final 
Report, January 25, 2022. Website: https://www.fssd.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/
03/Fairfield-Suisun-2022-Sewer-Rate-Study-3.22.22-Final.pdf (accessed April 25, 2022). 

_____.  Stormwater Management. Website: https://www.fssd.com/stormwater-management/ 
(accessed March 24, 2022). 

Fairfield-Suisun Urban Runoff Management Program. 2012. Stormwater C.3 Guidebook, October 
2012. Website: https://www.suisun.com/wp-content/files/Stormwater_C.3_Guidebook.pdf 
(accessed March 24, 2022). 

Kennedy Jenks. 2021. City of Fairfield 2020 Urban Water Management Plan. July 1, 2021. Website: 
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/5128/637648843436330000 
(accessed April 12, 2022). 

TSD Engineering, Inc. 2022. Preliminary Stormwater Control Plan Green Valley ‐3 Apartments. 
February 25, 2022. 



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-12 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

Yolo County Planning and Public Works Department, Division of Integrated Waste Management, 
2012. Countywide Siting Element of the Yolo County Integrated Waste Management Plan, 
August 2012. 

SECTION 4.14:  WILDFIRE 

California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE). 2020 Incident Archive. Website: 
https://www.fire.ca.gov/incidents/2020/ (accessed April 27, 2022). 

_____. Fire Hazard Severity Zones Maps, Solano County. Website: https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/
community-wildfire-preparedness-and-mitigation/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-
hazard-severity-zones-maps/ (accessed April 27, 2022). 

California Inter-Utility Coordinating Committee. 2018. California Temporary Traffic Control 
Handbook. 

City of Fairfield. 2021. City of Fairfield General Plan Environmental Impact Report. August 2001. 

County of Orange & Orange County Fire Authority (OCFA). 2015. Local Hazard Mitigation Plan. 
November. Website: http://cams.ocgov.com/Web_Publisher/Agenda07_12_2016_files/
images/O00216-000668A.PDF (accessed April 27, 2022). 

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA). FEMA Flood Map Service Center, Panel 
06055C0650E (effective 9/26/2009). Website: https://msc.fema.gov/portal/home (accessed 
April 28, 2022). 

Jones & Stokes, Draft Program Environmental Impact Report for the Comprehensive Amendment to 
the City of Fairfield General Plan, Figure 7-4 Fire Hazards, Page 7-17, August 2001. 

Meteoblue. Simulated Historical Climate and Weather Data for Fairfield, Windrose. Website: 
https://www.meteoblue.com/en/weather/historyclimate/climatemodelled/fairfield_united-
states_5347335 (accessed May 9, 2022). 

Solano County Office of Emergency Services. 2017. Emergency Operation Plan (EOP). January 2017. 
Website: https://www.solanocounty.com/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=13271 
(accessed April 2022). 

Solano County Office of Emergency Services and Department of Resource Management. 2012. 
Solano County Local Multi‐Hazard Mitigation Plan, March 2012. Website: https://
www.solanocounty.com/documents/Depts/OES/SolanoCountyMHMP-March2012-
FINAL.pdf (accessed April 2022). 

_____. 2021. Solano County Multi‐Jurisdictional Hazard Mitigation Plan, Public Draft, July 28, 2021. 
Website: https://www.solanocounty.com/civicax/filebank/blobdload.aspx?BlobID=36381 
(accessed April 2022). 



D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  
J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

 
 

P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 8-13 

CHAPTER 5.0:  OTHER CEQA CONSIDERATIONS 

California Department of Conservation. 2018. Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program, Solano 
County. Website: https://gis.conservation.ca.gov/portal/home/group.html?id=b1494c 
705cb34d01acf78f4927 a75b8f#overview (accessed April 10, 2022). 

California Department of Finance, E-5 Population and Housing Estimates for Cities, Counties, and the 
State, 2022 Data for the City of Fairfield. Website: https://dof.ca.gov/forecasting/ 
demographics/estimates/estimates-e5-2010-2021/ (accessed May 6, 2022). 

California Employment Development Department. 2022. Labor Market Information Division, 
Monthly Labor Force Data for Cities and Census Designated Places, March 2022. Website: 
http://www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov (accessed May 6, 2022). 

California Geological Survey (CGS). CGS Information Warehouse: Mineral Land Classification, Special 
Report 156 Mineral Land Classification: Portland Cement Concrete Grade Aggregate in the 
Sacramento-Fairfield Production Consumption Region, 1988, Plate 35. Website: 
https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/ cgs/informationwarehouse/index.html?map=mlc 
(accessed February 16, 2022). 

California Office of the State Fire Marshal, Fire Hazard Severity Zones Maps, Solano County. 
Website: https://osfm.fire.ca.gov/divisions/community-wildfire-preparedness-and-
mitigation/wildland-hazards-building-codes/fire-hazard-severity-zones-maps/ (accessed 
February 18, 2022). 

City of Fairfield. 2016. City of Fairfield General Plan Land Use Element, October 2016. 

_____. City of Fairfield Zoning Map. Website: https://fairfield.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webapp 
viewer/ index.html?id=2631cd4c79da4c6099c6e0a4ded9a172 (accessed February 15, 2022). 

Solano County. 2008. Solano County General Plan, November 2008. 

CHAPTER 6.0:  ALTERNATIVES 

City of Fairfield Community Development Department. 2015 General Plan Land Use Map. Website: 
https://www.fairfield.ca.gov/home/showpublisheddocument/3170/637732653282470000 
(accessed March 10, 2022). 

City of Fairfield. 2022. Fairfield Guidelines for Project VMT Screening Transportation Analysis, 
December 22, 2022.  

LoopNet. 2022. LoopNet Online Real Estate Marketplace. Website: https://www.loopnet.com 
(accessed May 19, 2022). 

United States Census Bureau. American Community Survey 2012–2016 Five-Year Estimates.   



G R E E N  V A L L E Y  3  A P A R T M E N T S  P R O J E C T  
C I T Y  O F  F A I R F I E L D ,  C A L I F O R N I A  

D R A F T  
E N V I R O N M E N T A L  I M P A C T  R E P O R T  

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 3 

 
 

8-14 P:\BTI2101\PRODUCTS\DEIR\Public\8.0-BTI2101_GV_3_Residential_Project_References.docx (01/04/23) 

Zillow. 2022. Zillow Online Real Estate Search. Website: https://www.zillow.com (accessed May 19, 
2022). 


	8.0 REFERENCES
	CHAPTER 2.0:  SUMMARY
	CHAPTER 3.0:  PROJECT DESCRIPTION
	SECTION 4.1:  AESTHETICS
	SECTION 4.2:  AIR QUALITY
	SECTION 4.3:  BIOLOGICAL RESOURCES
	SECTION 4.4: CULTURAL RESOURCES AND TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES
	SECTION 4.5: ENERGY
	SECTION 4.6:  GEOLOGY AND SOILS
	SECTION 4.7:  GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS
	SECTION 4.8: HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY
	SECTION 4.9:  LAND USE AND PLANNING
	SECTION 4.10:  NOISE
	SECTION 4.11:  PUBLIC SERVICES AND RECREATION
	SECTION 4.12:  TRANSPORTATION
	SECTION 4.13:  UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS
	SECTION 4.14:  WILDFIRE
	CHAPTER 5.0:  OTHER CEQA CONSIDERATIONS
	CHAPTER 6.0:  ALTERNATIVES


